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Bancor Hypro-ELectric NEws
PUBLISHED EVERY MONTH
FOR AND BY EMPLOYEES OF
THE BANGOR HYDRO-ELECTRIC COMPANY
Vol. 1 Bangor, Maine, November, 1928

Chief Ed., G. M. Stetson

Mng. Ed., H. C. Dearborn

News Ed., P. A. Mann

General Office Personnel

The Editors are pleased to present with this issue of

the News Thumbnail Sketches and Photographs of the

General Office Personnel of the Company.

EDWARD M. GRAHAM, PRESI-
DENT, was born in Quincy, Mass-
achusetts, in 1889, the youngest of
eleven children. He attended the
Quincy public schools and went to
Worcester Academy, from which he
graduated in 1906. Mr. Graham be-
gan his electric railway experience
as a clerk in the power station of the
Bay State Street Railway. At the
age of twenty-two he was appointed
Superintendent of the Portland &
Brunswick Street Railway, continu-
ing in that capacity until it became
the Brunswick & Yarmouth Street
Railway, of which he was elected
President.

Later he became Assistant to the
General Manager of both the Lewis-
ton, Augusta & Waterville Street
Railway and the Cumberland County
Power & Light Company, at that
time two of the largest electric cor-
porations in the State.

In 1913 he was appointed Assistant
to the President of the Bangor Rail-
way & Electric Company, of which
his father, John R. Graham, was the
President. In December 1915 he be-

came Vice-President and General
Manager of the Bangor Railway &
Electric Company, continuing in that
capacity until he succeeded Mr. E. C.
Ryder as President, February S8th,
1921.

During Mr. Graham’s administra-
tion as President and General Man-
ager the Bangor Railway & Electric
Company and a number of associat-
ed subsidiary companies were
merged into the Bangor Hydro-
Electric Company, and the combined
properties have thrived as few
similar properties have done. He
relinquished the General Manager-
ship, April 6th, 1928, a short time
after undertaking the tremendous
task of reorganizing the Eastern
Manufacturing Company.

Mr. Graham is now President of
the Bangor Hydro-Electric Company,
President of the Eastern Manufac-
turing Company, and Director of a
number of other corporations, be-
sides being exceedingly active in
matters pertaining to civic welfare
and the upbuilding of the State of
Maine.

Harrington Leads
Commercial Sales for

Month of October

The Harrington District, showing
$1.89 in commercial sales per resi-
dential meter, leads the merchan-
dising offices for the month of
October.

Millinocket still remains well out
in front in the total for the year,
with an enviable figure of $17.02,
with Ellsworth and Eastport in sec-
ond and third places respectively.

Bar Harbor has jumped from
seventh place to fifth, with Bangor
and Machias moving down one point
in the standing.

In New Business Ellsworth leads
for the month, and continues to lead
for the year, with Millinocket in
second place.
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FRANK SILLIMAN 3d, VICE
PRESIDENT AND GENERAL MAN-
AGER, cut short his course in elec-
trical engineering at the Sheffield
Scientific School of Yale University
in May, 1917, to enlist in the Field
Artillery for World War service.
With the Yale Battery of Field Ar-
tillery, he had in 1916 gone as far as
Tobyhanna, Pennsylvania on the
way to the Mexican Border. After
graduation from Officers’ Training
School, he was assigned to the Fifth
Field Artillery of the First Division,
with which organization he saw
twenty-two months’ foreign service
and reached the grade of First Lieu-
tenant.

His first connection with the Ban-
gor Hydro organization was during
the summers of 1911 and 1912 as an
assistant to J. A. Leonard, who was
at that time building the Veazie dam.
In January 1920 he returned to Ban-
gor and proceeded to acquire first-
hand knowledge of the workings of
an electric utility. Beginning as a
day laborer at Veazie station, he was
transferred to the car barn, where
he gained an acquaintance with the
operation of that part of the prop-
erty. He served his apprenticeship
at substation operation and meter
testing and then spent a year or
more in the Commercial Department.
From the latter he was made suc-
cessively assistant to the general
manager, vice president, and general
manager, which latter position he
assumed April 6, 1928,

SHERMAN N. SHUMWAY, GEN-
ERAL COUNSEL, graduated from
Bowdoin College with the A. B. de-
gree in June 1917 just a few days be-
fore his enlistment in the 103d In-
fantry, 26th Division, for World War
gservice. He was commissioned as
2nd Lieutenant in July 1917. He
was successively promoted to 1st
Lieutenant, Captain (Commanding
Company H, 103d Infantry), Major
(Commanding 2nd Battalion 103d In-
fantry), and Lieutenant Colonel. He
was honorably discharged, April
28th, 1919, and received the degree
of Master of Arts from Bowdoin Col-
lege later in the same year.

Graduating from Harvard Law
School in 1922 he practiced law as a
member of the firm of Gower &
Shumway in Skowhegan until Octo-
ber 1st, 1927, when he joined the
Bangor Hydro-Electric staff as Gen-
eral Counsel. His most important
work in this capacity has been the
directing of the prosecution of the
$800,000 damage suit against the
Foundation Company, arising from
the loss of Brimmer's Bridge Dam
in 1923. Mr. Shumway still retains
his interest in military affairs, and
holds a reserve commission as
Lieutenant Colonel of the 386th In-
fantry.

EUGENE M. DOLE, TREASURER.

After nearly ten years of service
in the Second National Bank of Ban-
gor as clerk, Mr. Dole entered the
employ of the Bangor Railway &
Electric Company in September 1913
as a bookkeeper. Sometime after-
wards he was made Chief Clerk of
the Accounting Department. In
1918 he was elected Assistant Treas-
urer and in the year 1925 he was
given the position of Treasurer.

PHILIP L. SPRAGUE, ASSISTANT
TREASURER. During November
1914 Mr. Sprague entered the em-
ploy of this Company as Freight
Clerk and in a very short time was
made Freight Agent in charge of the
Freight Department at Bangor,
where he worked until January 1918
when he was transferred to the Gen-
eral Office as bookkeeper for the
Bangor Railway & Electric Com-
pany. He held this position until
September 1925, when he was elect-
ed Assistant Treasurer. Mr. Sprague
has charge of the Accounting De-
partment. He was educated at the
public schools in Brewer and from
August 1918 to January 1919 he was
a member of the Radio Division of
the Air Service of the United States
Army.

HENRY W. DAGGETT, ASSISTANT

GENERAL MANAGER AND CLAIM
AGEN'T, entered the employ of the
Penobscot Central Railroad, which
later became the Charleston Division
of our Railway Department, Septem-
ber 5, 1905, serving at different times
as motorman and conductor, both in
passenger and freight service. When
we acquired the Penobscot Central
in 1906, Daggett continued for a
short time as motorman, but was
soon transferred to the Front street
freight office as clerk, working with
Mr. Howard Brett. In 1910 he was
promoted to the position of Assistant
Superintendent, moving to the gen-
eral offices with Mr. C. H. Johnson,
Superintendent of the Railway De-
partment. In 1921 he was made
Assistant to the General Manager
and in 1927 was made Assistant Gen-
eral Manager, General Freight Agent
and Claim Agent, which positions he
holds at the present time.

GLADYS M. STETSON, SECRE-
TARY T0 THE PRESIDENT, en-
tered the employ of this company on
September 10, 1923. Miss Stetson
had previously been employed by
Chandler & Company, furniture deal-
ers of Bangor, as stenographer.
Aside from her duties as secretary,
Miss Stetson is also active in the
Business & Professional Women'’s
Club of Bangor, and in the social
activities of the employees of this
company, being in charge of the new
recreational hall at 31 Main street.

ROBERT N. HASKELL, VICE-
PRESIDENT AND COMMERCIAL
MANAGER, graduated from the Uni-
versity of Maine in 1925 with the B.
S. Degree. Starting as a draftsman
in the Engineering Department, he
was, within a year, made Field Engi-
neer, in which capacity he super-
vised the building of the Washing-
ton County transmission line. He
next conducted a number of special
investigations, including an Un-
wired House Campaign covering our
entire territory. He was given
charge of the New Business Depart-
ment where, among other things, he
sold a number of ornamental street
lighting systems. He has now risen
to the position of Vice President and
Commercial Manager, in which

" capacity he has charge of all com-

mercial, merchandising and new
business activities of the company.

WILLIAM R. WRAY, MANAGER
OF THE BANGOR STORE, entered
the employ of this company Febru-
ary 1, 1911 as night telephone opera-
tor at the company’s general office,
which was located at that time at 31
Main street. When the general offices
were moved to the sixth floor of the
Graham Building in 1912, Mr. Wray
continued as night operator. He was
paymaster and clerk from 1913 until
1914, when he was transferred, as
cashier for the Light Department, to
the ground floor of the Graham
Building. In April, 1917, Mr. Wray
enlisted in the 56th Pioneer Infantry
and shortly afterwards left for
France. After the Armistice was
signed, Mr. Wray was with the Army
of Occupation at Coblentz, Germany.
In August, 1920 he returned to the
Bangor Hydro-Electric Company as
an inside salesman for the Commer-
cial Department, and on August 1,
1924 he was promoted to Commercial
Manager. Upon the expansion of
the Commercial Department in 1928,
Mr. Wray became Manager of the
Bangor store.

CHARLES H. JOHNSON, SUPER-
INTENDENT OF TRANSPORTA-
TION, has been continuously asso-
ciated with the Railway Department
of the Company since July 18, 1895.
He has passed successively through
the grades of motorman, conductor,
inspector and assistant superinten-
dent, until his promotion to Superin-
tendent of Transportation, which
position he has held continuously for
the past 19 years. His duties in-
clude the operation of the rolling
stock and the maintenance of way of
the electric railway system operated
by this company.

ANNA L. FOGG, TELEPHONE
OPERATOR, joined our forces Octo-
ber 15, 1928, taking the place of Mrs.
Marjorie Barbour Stephens, who had
operated the switchboard in the
Graham Building for the past six
years. Miss Fogg graduated from
Bangor High school in 1925. Since
that time she has been a local ex-
change operator in the Bangor office
of the New England Telephone and
Telegraph Company.
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JAMES A. LEONARD, HYDRAU-
LIC ENGINEER, received his tech-
nical education at Cornell Univer-
sity, specializing in Civil Engineer-
ing, Hydraulics and Architecture.
Starting from college as an instru-
ment man on railroad location work,
he was engaged for several years as
resident engineer in the construc-
ton of pulp and paper mills. In
139v, as resident engineer, he had
cnarge of building one of the early
nyuro-electric plants on the Hudson
ruver 1n Mechanicville, New York.
ne afterward went to Porto Rico
wnere he made a survey and plans
tor a hydro-electric plant for the
city of sSan. Juan. between other
jobs he engineered a number of
power deveiopments in South Caro-
una, ueorgia and Minnesota.

In 1Yu3 he made the surveys and
plans and in 1906 and 1907, as Chief
KEngineer, supervised the construc-
tion of the Elisworth dam and power
house tor the Bar Harbor and Union
River Power Company. After serv-
ing a year as assistant to the man-
ager of the Ambursen Construction
Company of Boston, he returned to
bangor and as chief engineer for the
Bangor rower Company designed
ana constructed the present concrete
ueIn and power house at Veazie.
After two years with the Cumber-
land County Power & Light Com-
pany of i’ortland, for whom he de-
signed and constructed the power
house and dam at Hiram Falls on
the Saco River, he went with the
Central Maine Power Company as
aes.gmng and constructing engineer.
il uus capacity he built the power
nouse and dam at Skowhegan and
the developments at Oakland, Rice
Rips, Kennebec Water District
pumping station, and the Union Gas
Station on the Messalonskee. In 1925
he again joined the forces of the
bangor Hydro-Electric Company.
Since that time he has redeveloped
the Machias station, built the dam
and power house at East Machias,
completed two stages of the develop-
mcnt of the West Enfield power site,
«nd icreased the capacity of Veazie
vy increasing the height of the flash-
soards.

As hydraulic engineer, he is re-
sponsible for the preparation of
plans and construction of the
hydraulic and structural part of
hydro-electric developments, and for
special investigations on subjects of
a similar nature.

ERNEST W. BROWN, OPERAT-
ING ENGINEER, came with us Sep-
tember 4, 1928 from the Gould Elec-
tric Company of Presque Isle, of
which he had been General Superin-
tendent. He is a graduate of the I.
C. S. and of the General Electric test
course at Lynn and Schenectady, and
was for fourteen years an electrical
expert for the General Electric Com-
pany. Among his other duties, he is
head of the newly created Power
Production Department, in which
capacity he is responsible for system
operation and for the operation and
maintenance of all power plants and
substations.

HAROLD W. COFFIN, PLANNING
ENGINEER, graduated from the U.
of M. in 1916 with a B. S. Degree,
and in 1922 received the Degree of
Electrical Engineer from the same
institution. He spent a year with
the Cumberland County Power &
Light Company of Portland as elec-
trician and relay specialist, after
which he served two years in the U.
S. Army as 2nd Lieutenant of Coast
Artillery. This included seven
months’ service in France. After
another year with the Cumberland
County Power & Light Company as
resident engineer on hydro-electric
construction, he spent two years as
electrical engineer for the Maine
Public Utilities Commission. He
came with us in December, 1922, to
make a power survey of Washington
County. After serving about three
yvears as Operating Engineer, he is
now our Planning Engineer, whose
duties include system planning and
the laying out of new electrical con-
struction.

ELWOOD W. JENNISON, ASSINT-
ANT HYDRAULIC ENGINEER, re-
ceived his B. S. Degree from the Uni-
versity of Maine in 1913. For three
yvears after his graduation he was
instructor in Mechanical Engineer-
ing at the University, but in 1916 he
entered the Bangor Railway & Elec-
tric Company organization as an
assistant on the valuation survey. In
the spring 1917 he was given an
assignment as Assistant Engineer
under Phifer Smith. In this posi-
tion he had charge of system opera-
tion.

From February 1918 to March 1919
Mr. Jennison worked in the drafting
room of the Steam Engineering De-
partment at the Portsmouth, New
Hampshire, Navy yard. After the
war he returned to his former posi-
tion in Bangor and in November
1921 became Engineer of Mainte-
nance of Way of the Bangor Hydro-
Electric Company, in which position
he inaugurated the system of thermit
welding our rail joints in concrete
and developed our present type of
roadbed structure in permanent
roadways. On January 1, 1927, he
became Assistant Hydraulic Engi-
neer. In that capacity he has done
much of the structural design for
the West Enfield power development
and drawn plans for a number of
similar projects.

HARVARD E. MOOR, ASSISTANT
FIELD ENGINEER, graduated from
Colby College in 1918 and from the
Massachusetts Institute of Tech-
nology in 1922, receiving from the
former a Bachelor of Arts Degree
and from the latter’ the degree of
Bachelor of Science. Since August
7, 1922, he has held various posi-
tions in the Engineering Depart-
ment, being at present assistant to
Mr. Cosseboom in the line construc-
tion department.

KENNETH C(COSSEBOOM, FIEL®
ENGINEER, automatically became »
member of our organization when
we acquired the Washington County
Light and Power Company at Ma-
chias, September 11, 1922. He is an
I. C. S. graduate in Electrical Engi-
neering, with previous experience on
inside wiring. Mr. Cosseboom
served four years with the Canadian
Expeditionary forces in the World
War, rising from the ranks to a
Lieutenant’s Commission. From Ma-
chias he was promoted to the man-
azership of the Old Town Division.
When later the Bangor Division was
created and Old Town made a dis-
trict of that division, Cosseboom was
promoted to Manager of the Bangor
Division. Owing to his excellent
record as a line builder, he was
transferred to the office of Field
Engineer when Mr. Haskell became
Vice President, and in that capacity
he now has charge of the construc-
tion and reconstruction of the com-
pany’s overhead transmission and
distribution lines.

EARLE R. WEBSTER, ASSIST.
ANT OPERATING ENGINEER, came
with this company June 27, 1927, im-
mediately after his graduation from
the U. of M. where he received the
B. S. Degree. He has worked as
draftsman and as Assistant Operat-
ing Engineer with Mr. Coffin, and is
now assisting Mr. Brown in the
same capacity.

A. F. REAVIEL, SUPERINTEN-
DENT OF LINES, entered the com-
pany's employ March 9, 1903 as a
car cleaner at the old wooden ecar
house on Main street. In 1905 he
was transferred to the old Bangor,
Orono & Old Town Railway car
house near the junction of Otis and
State streets. In 1906 Mr. Reaviel
transferred to the Light Department,
where he went to work as a lineman.
After about nine years in this de-
partment he was promoted to Assist-
ant Superintendent and also had
charge of the Meter Department. He
played an important part in the re-
building of the lines destroyed in the
Bangor fire in 1911 and in erecting
the switchboard and other equip-
ment in the new substation which
was built immediately after the fire.
After about five years as Assistant
Superintendent he was promoted to
Superintendent of Lines for the Ban-
gor District, which position he now
holds.

LOUIN E. GRANT, COLLECTION
MANAGER. On October 18, 1904, Mr
I.. E. Grant entered the employ of
this Company as a conductor. He
held this position until early in 1917
after which he acted as Inspector ir
the Railway Department. In the
year 1922 Mr. Grant was made a
Collection Manager and had charge
of the collection of the accounts, and
he is also in charge of the depart-
ment for the disposal ol obsolete
material.
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FRED H. LIBBY, PURCHASING
AGEN'I, originally joined this organ-
ization in 1901 as motorman for the
Bangor, Hampden & Winterport
Railway. Except for a short period
beginning in 1911, when he was a
department manager in the Besse
System store in Bangor, he has re-
mained continuously with the organ-
ization. He served as conductor on
the Hampden Division and later on
the Old Town Division. When
Riverside Park was opened at Hamp-
den, Mr. Libby was made manager
of the park curing the summer, also
acting as inspector in West Market
Square in the winter.

After the park was closed, Mr.
Libby acted as stock clerk in the
general office, later becoming assist-
ant purchasing agent under Walter
Sawtelle. On the death of the latter,
Mr. Libby was made purchasing
agent and was also given the man-
agement of the commercial and col-
lection departments. These positions
he held until the increase of the
company’s business necessitated the
separation of these departments. Mr.
Libby then became purchasing agent,
which position he holds at the pres-
ent time.

GEORGE L. T. TUPPER, ASSIST-
ANT PURCHASING AGENT, is a
native of Quincy, Massachusetts.
After working for ten years in the
home office of the New England
Mutual Life Insurance Company in
Boston, he entered the Army Trans-
port Service during the World War
as a quartermaster on the U. S.
Army transport “Sewall’s Point”.
This vessel was engaged in carrying
supplies from the United States to
various French ports. After the
war he accepted a position with the
Great Northern Paper Company as
Superintendent of Storehouses and
Storehouse Clerks. April 15, 1923 he
left the Great Northern to join the
Bangor Hydro organization as As-
sistant Purchasing Agent, which
position he has held since that date.

HALL C. DEARBORN, REAL
ESTATE MANAGER, was a loyal
son of the Class of 1902 of Colby
College. After spending several
years in the U. S. Customs Service,
he entered the lumber business in
Bangor, in which business his father
had previously been engaged. Dur-
ing the World War he had charge of
the Government Employment Agency
in Bangor, through which all of the
labor was supplied for lumbering
operations in the Maine woods. After
the war he went with E. B. Draper
Company as Employment Manager.
From 1922 until 1925 Mr. Dearborn
was engaged on an economic sur-
vey of the State of Maine under the
direction of the State Board of
Assessors in Augusta.

He came to this company Janu-
ary 21, 1925, as Real Estate Man-
ager, having supervision of the
maintenance and upkeep of all of
the company’s buildings excepting
the power plants and substations.
His duties also include the securing
of deeds and easements to land for
transmission rights-of-way and

other purposes, as the company’s
business requires, as well as search-
ing the titles of all deeds.

PRESTON A. MANN, OFFICE
MANAGER, began his career with
this company in 1907, working at
the time as clerk on construction at
Veazie in spare time while finishing
his high school course. In 1910 he
graduated from Bangor High school
and went to work assisting John
Morrill in the stockroom at the car
barn. For a time he worked in the
Railway Department as motorman,
conductor and clerk in Superinten-
dent Johnson'’s office.

For a year he assisted J. A.
Leonard in making a survey of the
power site at Hiram Falls for the
Cumberland County Power and
Light Company, after which he re-
turned to Bangor and served as
stock clerk and stenographer on the
Veazie dam construction job. He
then served for a second time as
clerk in Mr. Johnson's office, was
transferred to the main office, and
was for a time assistant purchasing
agent under R. A. Haddon. In 1920
he spent a year on the west coast as
assistant chief clerk in the chief
engineer’s department of the Los
Angeles Railway Corporation. Re-
turning to Bangor in 1921 he was
secretary to the president and in
1922 was made office manager, which
position he still holds. In this
capacity he has charge of the stenog-
raphers, the general files and all
matters pertaining to insurance.

JOHN V. MORRILL, STOCK-
KEEPER, has been with this com-
pany continuously since April 28,
1897. Beginning as spare conductor,
he graduated to a regular run which
he held until 1906, when he was put
in charge of the railway stockroom
at the car barn. As time went on
the stock of line material was added
to the railway stock and Mr. Morrill
had charge of both. He now has
charge of the receiving, warehousing
and issuing of our general stock of
line and railway material and is
looking forward to the construction
of a modern storehouse for all this
material in the not distant future.

Bar Harbor News

Sylvia Austin, Reporter

Mr. J. C. Pedder of Northeast Har-
bor has returned from a three weeks’
vacation trip, spent in New York and
i’hiladelphia.

Mr. Fred Grindle has been in
Northeast Harbor during Mr. Ped-
der’s absence.

Mr. Kenneth Stetson, who has
been ill at his home in Bangor for
several weeks has returned.

Mr. Ackley Willey and his crew
have nearly finished at Cranberry
Island. This month we expect to
have about seventy-five customers
connected on the two islands and
forty street lights installed for the
town.

The Bar Harbor Line Crew were
in Bluehill Sunday, November 4th,
assisting the Ellsworth crew in re-
pairing transmission lines.

Twenty-Six Years of Service

MR. AUSTIN A. HATHORNE was
employed by this company on July
14, 1902. He has worked for twenty-
six years at Veazie power house. His
present duties are assisting operator
M. D. Wentworth in the operation of
the equipment at Veazie Station.

Notice
Transportation Pass No. 72, issued
to Earle E. Parkhurst, Sales Man-
ager, has been lost. Should this
pass be presented for fare, operator
will take up and deliver to the
Superintendent of Transportation.

Notice
Transportation Pass No. 65 issued
to Charles W. Smith has been lost.
Should this pass be presented by
any person for fare, operator will
take up and return to the Superin-
tendent of Transportation.

Roundy-Smith Wedding

On Sunday, November 11th, Mr.
Forest Smith and Miss Ruby Roundy
were married at St. Stephen, New
Brunswick. The ceremony was per-
formed by Rev. C. R. McLennan.

Mr. Smith is employed by this
Company as a meter reader. Miss
Roundy is employed by the New
England Telephone and Telegraph
Company, Bangor.

Employees of the Bangor Hydro-
Electric Company extend their con-
gratulations to Mr. and Mrs. Smith.
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Exploring The
East Machias River

On one of those fine sunshiny days
that the weather man sometimes
gives us in late October, the Man-
ager got a tickling in his feet and
in his bosom an irresistible desire to
get out and commune with nature,
to forsake the cares of business and
lead the simple life for a while. Of
course, this isn't at all what the
official records show. Those cold,
hard, unromantic annals simply
stated that it was desirable that an
investigation of the water resources
of the East Machias River should be
made.

After a careful scrutiny of the
personnel of the Company to select
some brave and fearless man who
could face without flinching the
many perils to be encountered, the
Chief of Washington County was
added to the party. As it was de-
sired to bring back some pictures,
showing the big game that would un-
doubtedly be captured, and to dis-
play the character of the country
traversed, a photographer was need-
ed. Whereupon a call was sent out
for volunteers, but the adventurous
spirit and the artistic temperament
do not seem to be compatable and
no volunteers appeared, so the
photographer had to be hunted from
the hiding place to which he had
scuttled, upon hearing the call, and
drafted for service.

The party met at Machias, where
the fire arms, blankets, provisions,
scientific instruments, canoes and
miscellaneous duffle were loaded on
two automobiles, and proceeded to
the outlet of Crawford Lake, about
thirty miles north of Machias. There
two noted guides were added to the
party. Just before reaching the Lake
great excitement was created when
a large black bhear appeared by the
side of the road.

The Manager, with that presence
of mind in emergencies which has
placed him where he is, remained in
the carsand ordered the Chief to dis-
mount with the machine gun and the
photographer to unlimber his
camera. But as the tree behind
which the Chief had set up the gun
was too large to see around, and as

the photographer found it difficult
to sight his camera while doing a
hundred yard dash to the rear, the
bear remained unharmed and un-
photographed. In the meantime the
guides had deployed and taken a
position on the flank of the ferocious
animal, but just as they were about
to fire it was discovered that the
bear was securely chained to a tree.
With only this little fact to start
from it was deduced that possibly
the bear was a tame one belonging
to a nearby farmer, and the expedi-
tion was ordered to proceed.

An examination of the dam at the
foot of Crawford Lake was made
and the character of the shores in-
vestigated, after which the canoes
were unloaded and launched on the
wild waters of East Machias River,
and the adventurous journey begun.

The leading canoe contained a
guide, the Manager and the photog-
rapher, and the other canoe followed
with the Chief and another guide.
The canoes were small, heavily
laden and the water swift and full
of rocks, some visible and some
lurking treacherously just below the
surface. The little crafts swept
rapidly along, sometimes in the
middle of the channel and sometimes
detouring to avoid a large rock and
sometimes scraping over a hidden
reef. The photographer is not what
is generally called a prayerful man,
but he shut his eyes, gripped the

gunwales of the canoe and repeated
“Now I lay me” many times. It was
afterwards found that, so hard had
he clung to the gunwales, the im-
print of his fingers was plainly
visible.

The guide to allay his fears told of
the much worse conditions further
cown the river, of many thrilling
escapes and of canoes wrecked on
hidden rocks, but said he had never
had but one accident himself and
that was not serious for he had
escaped with his life. The photog-
rapher inquired as to what became
of his companion, and the guide.
after some hesitation, said he wasn’t
sure, for he couldn’t find him after
the accident and thought he might
have been drowned, otherwise noth-
ing serious happened. With his fears
thus greatly allayed, the photograph-
er settled down to enjoy the scenery.

At noon of the first day a landing
was made on a rocky point and the
Chief produced with a great deal of
pride a gadget called a grub stake.
This consisted of an iron stake or
bar about three feet long fitted with
three or four sliding shelves. The
stake was driven in the ground and
a fire kindled around it, and soon the
savory odors from frying bacon and
eggs filled the air. There may be
something in the universe which
tastes better than bacon and eggs
cooked in the open after a hard
morning’s work, but the writer
doesn’t remember anything. A com-
petition to see who could eat the
most bacon and eggs in the shortest
possible time was easily won by the
Manager.
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